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Fort Laramie is best known for the forty one years (1849 to
1890) it served as a military post and for its role in the western
Indian Wars. The earlier “forts” that existed here are less known
and understood, representing the Jr-i{’ceen—yeeu' fur and robe trade
history of the site from 1834 to 1849. In the spring of 1834,
“Fort William on the Laramie” was established l)y fur traders as
a stockade made from cottonwood logs. In 1844, a replacement
structure, “Fort John,” was built using adobe bricks. In 1849,
the U. S. Army ]:uought the structure and established a military
post that became known as “Fort Laramie,” which existed until
1890. While not the earliest Euroamerican settlement in

what we now know as Wyoming, “Fort William/John/Laramie”
remains the longest continuously occupied Buroamerican

location in the state.

1050 excavation behind Quarter's A in search of Fort John's foundation.

Leﬁ: Circular base af 1856 lime kitn excavated in 2004. The kiln was remodeled in the 1030s to serve as the base of a homesteader-era water tower.

Middle: Archaeological excavations behind Old Bedlam in 1088.

Right: 1880s cache of beer and other alcoholie beverage bottles Jound during archaeological excavations behind Old Bedlam in 19098.

In June of 1834, William Sublette and Robert Campbell established
the first fur trading post at the confluence of the Laramie and

North Platte Rivers. The confluence of these two rivers was one of
Western America’s most strategic geographic places, especiaﬂy for the
developing buffalo robe trade in 1834. A trading post in this location
could control supply to a vast area of the central Rocley Mountains and

a large area of the bison range in the Great Plains.

‘May 31, 1834—This a’ay we laid the founaiation /og o][ a ][ort, on
Laramee’s fork. A ][riena7/y dispute arose between our leader and
myse/][, as to the name. He pmposea] to call it Fort Ana’erson, 1
insisted upon baptising it Fort Sublette, and holding the trump card
m my hand, (a bottle of clzampagne) was about to claim the trick.
Sublette stood ZJy, cup reversecl, still objecting, when Patton o][][ereaI

a compromise which was accepted, and the foam flew, in honor o][
Fort William which contained the triad prenames o][ c/er/e, leader and
Friend. " The journal of William Marshall Anderson (Morgan

& Harris 1967).

In 1835, Sublette and CampLeH sold Fort William to another
fur trading company called Fontenelle, Fi’czpatriclz & Co, who,
in turn, later sold it to Pierre Chouteau and Atl'le American
Fur Company in 1836. The American Fur Company, and
their trapping brigade known as the Rocky Mountain Qutfit,
operated out of the fort until 1841, when competition caused
them to rebuild. Lancaster Lupton, an independent tracler,
had built an adobe fort just north of Fort William, and began
trade with the Indians. By this time, the log stockade of Fort
William was deteriorated and provided little real protection to
its occupants. The shabby look and decaying features of Fort
William were not good for business. In order to re-capture the

trade, the American Fur Company invested $10,000 in the

construction of a replacement.

Completed in 1841, the large and impressive “Fort ]ohn"
was opened for business. Named for a partner in the
company, John Sarpy, Fort John was built of thick adobe walls

surrounding a central courtyard, much like Fort William.



By 1849, the flood of westward emigrants motivated the
government to take steps for the safety and well l)eing of

the emigrants. A string of army posts along the trail could
provicle a sense of security, leeep the trail open, and allow for
reliable points of supply and repair. In April of 1849, the
Regiment of Mounted Rifles moved into the old adobe fort
after purchasing it from the American Fur Company for four
thousand dollars. The forty one-year military perio& then

])egan and what we now see and know as Fort Laramie was

established.

Fort ]olln was the structure many of the Oregon/ California
Trail emigrants associated with Fort Laramie. It was the
impressive structure seen at the south end of the paracle
grouncl throughout the early years of overland migration. As
such, many more travelers sketched this structure. We thus
have a much better record of what Fort ]ohn looked like than
Fort William.

One of the commonly asked questions from Fort Laramie’s
visitors is “Where is the original fur trader post [Fort Wiuiam]
located?” The National Park Service and historians interested
in the Fur Trapper Era during the western expansion of
Euroamericans in North America have long asked this
question. Despite the early depictions and descriptions of
Fort Wiuiam, the exact location of the fort has been lost to
history. The only way the location of Fort William and many
other early structures can ever be determined is through
archaeological studies. Such studies are vital to understanding
the full history of Fort Laramie from its beginnings in 1834.
The first archaeological investigations at Fort Laramie
National Monument began in mid-August 1938 by a CCC
work force under the direction of G. Hubert Smith shortly

after the property was &esigna’cecl a national monument.

This early work at Fort Laramie N ational Monument set the tone

for the following eighty years: construction or restoration work

was always preceded by archaeological investigations or monitored

for their archaeological content. More than 75 such projects have
been completecl and there is no end in sigh’c. A recently completed
geophysical survey of the central portion of the fort, including the area
around all standing structures, revealed so much about the archaeology
of Fort Laramie it would take more than 100 years of excavation and

analysis to completely record the site’s archaeology.
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